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Mr. William Needelman, AICP 
Planning and Development Department 
City of Portland, Maine 
389 Congress Street 
Portland, Maine 04101-3509 
 
Subject: Canal Landing New Yard – Phase 1 
 40 West Commercial Street 
 Applicant:  New Yard, LLC 
 Amended Site Plan Review Comments 
 
Dear Bill: 
 
We have received and reviewed your review comments dated August 19, 2013 for the Canal 
Landing New Yard project and offer our responses to these comments.  For ease of reference we 
have repeated each comment in italics with our response following.  
 
Comment 1: 
 
At the time of the original approval, the Board imposed several conditions of approval that 
remain outstanding.  Three of these conditions were addressed in a February 15, 2013 letter to 
the Planning Office, namely; iv. Other Agency Reviews, vi. Flood Plain Management, and viii. 
Fire Safety and Emergency Access.  Please provide a narrative for the Planning Board 
describing how and prior to which proposed phase the remaining conditions will be addressed. 
 
Response: 
 
The Conditions of Approval and the status of each are outlined below: 
 
i. MDOT Shared Entrance:  that prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant 

provides for review and approval an easement between MDOT and New Yard for 
construction and use of a shared entry way. 
 
Status: 
 
New Yard LLC continues to work closely with the MaineDOT regarding the easterly area 
of the site.  Satisfaction of this condition is expected to be part of the ongoing IMT 
expansion dialogue and it is not part of the current Phase 1A activity.  New Yard LLC 
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retained access rights for access through the existing Commercial Street gate, located at the 
northeasterly property corner, as evidenced in the Property Deed (CCRD Book 30887, 
Page 247). 
 

ii. Beach Street Intersection Contributions:  that prior to issuance of a building permit, the 
applicant contributes $5000 for Beach Street intersection improvements. 
 
Status 
 
New Yard LLC intends to comply with this condition in advance of requesting a building 
permit.  At this time, a building permit will not be requested until an Amended Site Plan 
Submission is made and approved for several proposed building realignments that are now 
being considered. 
 

iii. Combined Sewer Overflow Easement:  that prior to issuance of a building permit, the 
applicant provides a 30 foot wide easement to the City for the combined sewer overflow 
line crossing the property from West Commercial Street to the Fore River as shown on the 
DeLuca-Hoffman Associates, Inc. Site Development Plan, C-2.1, revision 4, dated 12-5-12. 
 
Status: 
 
New Yard LLC intends to comply with this condition depending on the outcome of the 
IMT expansion discussions with the MaineDOT, as well as the Amended Site Plan Review.  
If New Yard LLC seeks a building permit prior to any further progress on the IMT 
expansion, then they will comply with this condition and offer to the City the necessary 
easement documents. 
 

iv. Other Agency Reviews:  that any modifications to City approved plans to meet outside 
agency requirements must be identified and submitted to the Planning Authority for final 
review prior to issuance of a building permit.  Outside agency permits include, NRPA 
wetland alteration permits, MaineDEP VRAP approvals, and Portland Harbor 
Commission approvals. 
 
Status: 
 
This condition has been previously addressed in the February 15, 2013 letter to the 
Planning Authority. 
 

v. Rail Demolition:  that prior to demolition of existing rail infrastructure, the applicant 
either provides evidence of rail abandonment or a legal opinion for the review and 
approval of Corporation Counsel that such abandonment is not required. 
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Status: 
 
Item #3 of the accompanying Release Deed provides evidence of the railroad’s 
abandonment of the tracks. 
 

vi. Flood Plain Management:  that prior to issuance of a building permit, the final site plan is 
revised to include a note requiring that structures on lots in the development be 
constructed in accordance with Portland City Code, section 14-450.8, Flood Plain 
Management. 
 
Status: 
 
This condition has been previously addressed in the February 15, 2013 letter to the 
Planning Authority. 
 

vii. Stormwater Management:  that prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant 
provides for review and approval a revised grading and drainage plan and supporting 
material consistent with consulting stormwater engineer, Dave Senus’ review memo dated 
December 14, 2012, included as Attachment 4 of Planning Report #53-12. 
 
Status: 
 
New Yard’s team will provide revised plans and supporting evidence to address the 
engineering peer review comments as part of the upcoming Amended Site Plan Application 
pertaining to the proposed realignment of the Phase 1B building(s).  This submission will 
be made within the next two weeks. 
 

viii. Fire Safety and Emergency Access:  that prior to issuance of a building permit, the 
applicant submit a revised site plan for review and approval in compliance with the 
December 12, 2012 fire code analysis memo from Fire Risk Management, Inc.  
(Attachment U of Planning Report #53-12)  The revised site plan will show emergency 
access routes to be kept clear of stored and trailered vessels, vehicle parking and snow 
storage. 
 
Status: 
 
This condition has been previously addressed in the February 15, 2013 letter to the 
Planning Authority. 
 

ix. Utility Capacity:  that prior to issuance of a building permit, that electrical, gas, and sewer 
capacity letters are provided to the Planning Authority. 
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Status: 
 
Utility capacity letters have been obtained and will be provided as part of the upcoming 
Amended Site Plan Application related to the building locations. 
 

x. Fencing:  that the chain link fencing fronting West Commercial Street is provided with a 
black vinyl coating. 
 
Status: 
 
New Yard LLC is proposing to salvage some of the existing chain link fence fabric onsite 
and they intend to apply a black vinyl coating to any salvaged or new fence in compliance 
with this condition. The fencing is in the area which of interest to MDOT.  
 

Comment 2: 
 
The previous approval included conditional use review for marine product sales and boat 
storage.  The narrative clearly states that boat storage is proposed in phase 1a.  Is the applicant 
proposing to conduct yacht sales and/or marine product sales on site on the basis of the earliest 
phase? 
 
Response: 
 
The applicant is not contemplating yacht sales and/or marine product sales on site as part of the 
Phase 1A activities.  The applicant’s initial goals are simply to begin limited placement of boats 
on the site in the form of a rudimentary boat yard until such time as MDOT provides right title 
and interest to adjacent property that MDOT intends to purchase to relocate New Yard to the 
West.  These steps by MDOT are necessary so New Yard can quickly reconfigure the buildings 
and reestablish its master plan to the west.  To allow New Yard to meet its current obligations as 
this transition  occurs, it is necessary as a minimum to construct the westerly ramp and to secure 
the site. 
 
Comment 3: 
 
The proposed construction trailer is not shown on the phasing plan.  If the trailer is proposed for 
use beyond the construction of phase 1a improvements:  show the location and extent of utility 
connections; locate the nearest existing fire hydrant; and, describe/show circulation and 
emergency access to the structure. 
 
Response: 
 
The construction trailer is proposed as only a temporary measure during the Phase 1A period and 
during the Phase 1B construction.  The trailer is not expected to be onsite permanently.  The 
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Phasing Plan has been annotated per the attached figure to depict the trailer location, nearest fire 
hydrant and circulation/emergency access route. 
 
Comment 4: 
 
Regarding the westerly boat ramp:  Will a wash down area be improved with the 
construction of the ramp?  If not, where will wash down activity take place and what 
means to control discharge to the bay will be employed? 
 
Response: 
 
The applicant intends to employ MeDEP approved measures for any wash down activities.  This 
will include a water recycling system that involves the placement of a concrete pad and sump to 
collect wash water that is pumped into mobile tanks.  The tanks allow sediments to be settled out 
and the water to be recycled for reuse in more washing activities.  This method has been 
successfully deployed at PYS and has the endorsement of MeDEP staff. 
 
Comment 5: 
 
The application narrative describes “boat repair activities” to be approved with phase 1a.  
Please describe in greater detail. 
 
Response: 
 
The applicant’s boat repair activities under Phase 1A will include out of water activities 
including repairs, routine maintenance and interior boat work.   The activities would reflect the 
normal maintenance of vessels in a boatyard in the fall. Vessels hauled for extensive work will 
be waiting for the building to be constructed so work can take place in a sheltered environment. 
 
Comment 6: 
 
The application narrative proposes “no permanent underground utilities will be installed.”  
Please describe the extent of both overhead and temporary underground utility proposed. 
 
Response: 
 
The applicant intends to initially use the west side of the property.  Power supply to this area will 
come off the existing utility poles and overhead wires within the site.  This overhead power runs 
from Commercial Street along the existing NGL Energy driveway into the property.  There are 
existing utility poles with lighting within the site.  An existing meter box on one of the poles will 
be reused and a temporary service extended to a temporary ground mounted panel or into the 
temporary construction trailer.  There are no other utilities proposed as part of Phase 1A. 
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If you have any questions regarding these responses please contact this office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
FAY, SPOFFORD & THORNDIKE 
 
 
 
Stephen R. Bushey, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
 
SRB/smk 
 
Attachments: Annotated Phasing Plan 
 
c: Phin Sprague, New Yard LLC 
 Bob Flight, New Yard LLC 
 Peter Plumb, Murray, Plumb and Murray 
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